
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Organizational Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

January 4
th

 2012 

2:00 p.m. 

2012 Organizational Meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

 

 1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

TAB L    Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman 

TAB M  Selection of Dates for the Board Meetings 

TAB Mc  Resolution Entitled “Organizational Meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of  

Supervisors 2012” [which includes times & location of meetings] 

TAB N  Adoption of Board By-Laws and Rules of Procedures 

TAB O  Appointments/Boards & Commissions  

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

January 4
th

 2012 

2:30 p.m. 

 

 

   2-REPORTS 

  Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB P   Minutes of December 22

nd
 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB Q  FY12 Budget Supplement for Library Telecommunication Reimbursement – Renee Hoover, Finance  

Director 

   

  5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB R  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 

     

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

  None 

 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

 None 

 

  9-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

10-NEW BUSINESS 

 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

  Legal Matters – Pending Litigation 

 

13-RECESS TO January 6, 2012 

 Board of Supervisors Retreat – January 6, 2012 at 8:00a.m., at the Water Street Conference Center. 

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

 

********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  

       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 





2 

 

Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 

§ 15.2-1415. At what meetings governing body may act.  

Unless otherwise specially provided, a governing body may exercise any of the powers 

conferred upon it at any meeting of the governing body, regular, special or adjourned at 

which a quorum is present. A majority of the governing body shall constitute a quorum 

except as may be otherwise provided in the State and Local Government Conflict of 

Interests Act (§ 2.2-3100 et seq.). Meetings of governing bodies shall be subject to the 

applicable provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (§ 2.2-3700 et seq.).  
(Code 1950, § 15-247; 1962, c. 623, § 15.1-542; 1997, c. 587; 2007, c. 613.) 

 
§ 15.2-1416. Regular meetings.  
The governing body shall assemble at a public place as the governing body may 

prescribe, in regular session in January for counties and in July for cities and towns. 

Future meetings shall be held on such days as may be prescribed by resolution of the 

governing body but in no event shall less than six meetings be held in each fiscal year.  

The days, times and places of regular meetings to be held during the ensuing months shall 

be established at the first meeting which meeting may be referred to as the annual or 

organizational meeting; however, if the governing body subsequently prescribes any 

public place other than the initial public meeting place, or any day or time other than that 

initially established, as a meeting day, place or time, the governing body shall pass a 

resolution as to such future meeting day, place or time. The governing body shall cause a 

copy of such resolution to be posted on the door of the courthouse or the initial public 

meeting place and inserted in a newspaper having general circulation in the county or 

municipality at least seven days prior to the first such meeting at such other day, place or 

time. Should the day established by the governing body as the regular meeting day fall on 

any legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next following regular business day, 

without action of any kind by the governing body.  

At its annual meeting the governing body may fix the day or days to which a regular 

meeting shall be continued if the chairman or mayor, or vice-chairman or vice-mayor if 

the chairman or mayor is unable to act, finds and declares that weather or other 

conditions are such that it is hazardous for members to attend the regular meeting. Such 

finding shall be communicated to the members and the press as promptly as possible. All 

hearings and other matters previously advertised shall be conducted at the continued 

meeting and no further advertisement is required.  

Regular meetings, without further public notice, may be adjourned from day to day or 

from time to time or from place to place, not beyond the time fixed for the next regular 

meeting, until the business before the governing body is completed.  

Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, any city or town that holds an 

organizational meeting in compliance with its charter or code shall be deemed to be in 

compliance with this section.  

(Code 1950, § 15-241; 1950, p. 8; 1954, c. 286; 1958, c. 291; 1960, c. 33; 1962, cc. 218, 

623, § 15.1-536; 1964, c. 403; 1980, c. 420; 1994, cc. 371, 591; 1997, c. 587; 2004, c. 

549.) 

 

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+2.2-3100
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+2.2-3700
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?071+ful+CHAP0613
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?941+ful+CHAP0371
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?941+ful+CHAP0591
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?041+ful+CHAP0549


3 

 

 

§ 15.2-1416.1. Actions prior to convening of meeting.  

During the time prior to the governing body's actual call to order or convening of 

business, any expressions by members of the governing body or members of the public 

shall be held consistent with the individual's First Amendment right of freedom of 

speech.  

(2005, c. 592.) 

 
§ 15.2-1417. Special meetings.  

The governing body may also hold such special meetings, as it deems necessary, at such 

times and places as it finds convenient. It may adjourn such special meetings from time to 

time as it finds convenient and necessary.  

(Code 1950, § 15-242; 1962, c. 623, § 15.1-537; 1997, c. 587.) 

 
§ 15.2-1419. Meeting times of certain authorities, boards and commissions.  
Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, general or special, the governing body of 

any locality may establish the regular meeting times (day and hour) of its authorities, 

boards and commissions so as to prevent conflict with other meetings.  

(1995, cc. 198, 240, § 15.1-37.3:14; 1997, c. 587.) 

 
§ 15.2-1420. How questions determined; tie breaker.  

All questions submitted to the governing body for decision shall be determined by a 

majority of the members voting on any such question unless another method of 

determination is required by the Constitution of Virginia or general law.  

In counties which have designated a tie breaker pursuant to § 15.2-1421, in any case in 

which there is a tie vote of the board upon any question when all the members are not 

present, the question shall be passed by till the next meeting when it shall again be voted 

upon even though all members are not present; in any case in which there is a tie vote on 

any question after complying with the herein above procedure, the clerk shall record the 

vote and immediately notify the tie breaker elected by the voters as provided in § 15.2-

1421, to give the casting vote in case of a tie, if that is practicable, and request his 

presence at the present meeting of the board; but if that is not practicable then the board 

may adjourn to a day fixed in the minutes of the board, or in case of a failure to agree on 

a day, to a day fixed by the clerk and entered by him on the minutes. At the present 

meeting or on the day named in the minutes the tie breaker shall attend. He shall be 

entitled to be fully advised as to the matter upon which he is to vote, and if not prepared 

to cast his vote at the time he may require the clerk to enter an order adjourning the 

meeting to some future day to be named in the minutes not to exceed thirty days and from 

time to time he shall have continuances entered until he is ready to vote, not to exceed 

thirty days. When he casts his vote the clerk shall record his vote and the tie shall be 

broken, and the question shall be decided as he casts his vote. If a meeting for any reason 

is not held on the day named in the minutes, the clerk shall enter on the minute book a 

day within ten days as a substitute day and duly notify all the members, and this shall 

continue until a meeting is held. After a tie has occurred, the tie breaker shall be 

considered a member of the board for the purpose of counting a quorum for the sole 

purpose of breaking the tie. Final votes on any ordinance or resolution shall be in 

accordance with the procedure provided for in Article VII, Sections 7 and 9 of the 

Constitution of Virginia.  

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?051+ful+CHAP0592
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?951+ful+CHAP0198
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?951+ful+CHAP0240
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+15.2-1421
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+15.2-1421
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+15.2-1421


4 

 

(Code 1950, § 15-245; 1962, c. 623, § 15.1-540; 1972, cc. 734, 790; 1974, c. 550; 1980, 

c. 172; 1994, c. 550; 1997, c. 587; 2007, c. 833.) 

 

§ 15.2-1421. Tie breakers.  

The governing body of each county may designate a tie breaker, whose duty it shall be to 

cast the deciding vote in case of tie, as set forth in § 15.2-1420. The designation of the tie 

breaker shall be by election by the voters of the county from the county at large. Every tie 

breaker shall serve for a period of four years from the date of his election and every tie 

breaker so elected shall serve the same term as a member of the governing body. No 

person shall be elected or serve as tie breaker who is not a resident of the county; who is 

not qualified to hold office as supervisor or who is an employee or officer of the county. 

Tie breakers heretofore appointed or elected shall continue in office until the expiration 

of the respective terms. Vacancies in the position of tie breaker shall be filled in the same 

manner as vacancies in the governing body.  

(Code 1950, § 15-240; 1952, c. 159; 1952, Ex. Sess., c. 10; 1954, c. 91; 1962, cc. 595, 

623, § 15.1-535; 1966, c. 280; 1972, c. 593; 1974, c. 550; 1981, c. 261; 1994, c. 550; 

1997, c. 587; 2007, c. 833.) 

 
§ 15.2-1422. Electing a chairman and vice-chairman; mayor and vice-mayor.  

Unless the chairman or mayor is elected by popular vote, every governing body, at its 

first meeting after taking office, shall elect one of its number as presiding officer. Such 

officer shall be called "chairman" if a member of a board of supervisors and "mayor" if a 

member of a city or town council. Such member, if present, shall preside at the first 

meeting and all other meetings during the term for which so elected. The governing body 

also shall elect a vice-chairman or vice-mayor, as the case may be, who shall preside at 

meetings in the absence of the chairman or mayor and may discharge any duty of the 

chairman or mayor during his absence or disability. Chairmen and vice-chairmen, mayors 

and vice-mayors, may be so elected to serve for terms corresponding with their terms as 

supervisors or councilmen or may be elected for such other period as determined by the 

governing body. Whenever any board or council at the time of such election, fails to 

designate the specific term of office for which a chairman or vice-chairman, a mayor or 

vice-mayor, is elected, it shall be presumed that such officers were elected for a term of 

one year and shall serve until their successors have been elected and qualify. Chairmen 

and vice-chairmen, mayors and vice-mayors, may succeed themselves in office. In the 

case of the absence from any meeting of the chairman and vice-chairman, mayor and 

vice-mayor, the members present shall choose one of their number as temporary 

presiding officer.  

(1997, c. 587.) 

 
§ 15.2-1423. Powers of chairman or mayor.  

In addition to being presiding officer, the chairman or mayor, as the case may be, shall be 

the head of the local government for all official functions and ceremonial purposes. He 

shall have a vote but no veto.  

In the event that there is no chief administrative officer, it shall be the duty of the 

chairman or mayor, as the case may be, to see that the functions set forth in § 15.2-1541 

are carried out if the governing body has not acted otherwise.  

(1997, c. 587.) 

 
§ 15.2-1424. Vacancies in office.  

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?941+ful+CHAP0550
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?071+ful+CHAP0833
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+15.2-1420
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?941+ful+CHAP0550
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?071+ful+CHAP0833
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+15.2-1541
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587


5 

 

Vacancies in the office of board of supervisors or of council or an elected chairman or 

mayor, for whatever reason, shall be filled as provided for in Title 24.2. A member of the 

board or council may be elected or appointed to fill a vacancy in the office of chairman or 

mayor.  

The person appointed or elected to fill the vacancy shall possess the same legal 

qualifications for the office as did the person whose position he is filling.  

In the event of a vacancy in the office of chairman or mayor, the duties of the office of 

chairman or mayor shall be performed by the vice-chairman or vice-mayor until a 

chairman or mayor is appointed or elected and qualifies.  

Vacancies in the office of vice-chairman or vice-mayor shall be filled by appointment by 

the remaining members of the appropriate governing body from its membership.  

(1997, c. 587.) 

 

 

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587




2012 
Meeting Calendar 

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
1st meeting @ 2:00pm / 2nd meeting @ 7:00pm 

 
 

January 4th and 18th 2012 

February 1st and 15th 2012 

March 7th and 21st 2012 

April 4th and 18th 2012 

May 2nd and 16th 2012 

June 6th and 20th 2012 

July 3rd (Tuesday) and 18th 2012 

August 1st 2012 

September 5th and 19th 2012 

October 3rd and 17th 2012 

November 7th and 20th (Tuesday) 2012 

December 5th and 19th 2012 

 

 

Adopted this 4th day of January 2012 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

 





BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held 
on Wednesday, January 4th 2012, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 
 
 

Present Vote 
Mozell Booker        
Joe Chesser      
Bob Ullenbruch              
Shaun V. Kenney        

 Donald W. Weaver  
 
 
 On a motion by ___________ seconded by __________ and carried by a vote of 
_______ the following resolution was adopted: 
 
Organizational Meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 2012 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Virginia requires an annual organizational meeting for the Board 
of Supervisors for the election of officers and the conduct of such other business as to 
meeting times and dates and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors does now conduct such an organizational meeting. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that it does hereby 
designate the Circuit Courtroom in the Fluvanna Courts Building as its meeting place for 
regular meetings to be held on the first Wednesday of each month at 2:00 p.m. and the 
third Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m.  Except February 1st when the meeting will 
be held in the Historic Courthouse due to Court being in session, in the month of July 
when the first meeting will be held on Tuesday July 3rd due to the holiday, the month of 
August when the only meeting shall be on the first Wednesday starting at 2:00 p.m., 
breaking for dinner, then reconvening at 7:00 p.m. for public hearings and in the month of 
November when the second meeting will be held on Tuesday November 20th, due to the 
holiday. 
 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that it does hereby designate 
the fourth Wednesday at 7:00 p.m. as the meeting date for any such regular meeting that 
is postponed due to weather or such other circumstances. 
 
 
Adopted this 4th day of January 2012 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 

 





 

 

FFLLUUVVAANNNNAA  CCOOUUNNTTYY  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BY-LAWS & RULES 

OF 

PRACTICE & 

PROCEDURES 
 

 

Adopted  

January 4
th

 2012 

 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

Creation         1   

          

Seal of the Board        1    

 

Principal Address        1 

 

Chairman to the Board       1 

  

Vice-Chairman        1 

 

County Administrator        1 

 

Clerk to the Board        1 

 

County Attorney        1 

 

Quorum for the Exercise of Board Business     2 

 

Meetings and Attendance        2 

 

Order of Business        3 

 

Conduct of Business        4 

 

Order          5 

 

Committees         6 

 

Parliamentarian        6 

 

Rules          6 

 

Official Board Travel        6 

 

Recording of Meetings       6 

 

Approval of Certain Checks, Authorization to Sign with Stamp  6 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 Page 1 

 

January 4
th

 2012 

 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BY-LAWS 

AND RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES 

 

 

  I.  CREATION 

 

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors, hereinafter called the Board, is an elected body provided 

by the Code of Virginia, Section 15.2-1400.  It consists of five (5) members elected from each of 

the Voting Districts. 

 

II.  SEAL OF THE BOARD 

 

When affixed to any paper or document by the Clerk of the Board, the Seal has the force and 

effect for authentication for the Board. 

 

III.  PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 

 

132 Main Street, Palmyra, Virginia, mailing address:  P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, Virginia  22963. 

 

IV.  CHAIRMAN TO THE BOARD 

 

At the first meeting of the year, the Board selects one of its members to serve as Chairman.  The 

Chairman is a voting member and serves for one year. 

 

V.  VICE-CHAIRMAN 

 

At the first meeting of the year, the Board selects one of its members to serve as Vice-Chairman.  

The Vice-Chairman is a voting member and serves for one year. 

 

VI. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

The County Administrator shall assume the general duties as set forth in the Code of Virginia, 

Section 15.2-1541.  He shall maintain an office at the same address as the Board.  

 

VII. CLERK TO THE BOARD 

 

The Administrative Assistant to the County Administrator is appointed and shall serve as Clerk 

to the Board for all purposes except those set out in paragraph G of Section 15.2-407, which is 

hereby expressly placed in the County Administrator, or his designee Section 15.2-1538.   

 

VIII.  COUNTY ATTORNEY 

 

The County Attorney assists the Board in analyzing the facts; provides advice and action in legal 

matters and represents the Board in civil actions. 



 

 

Page 2 

IX.  QUORUM FOR THE EXERCISE OF BOARD BUSINESS 

 

 A.  A quorum shall not be necessary for the exercise of administrative functions. 

 

B.  A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting 

Board business. 

 

X.  MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE 

 

A.  All meetings and business shall be conducted in accordance with the Code of 

Virginia, Robert’s Rules of Order Revised, and these by-laws as interpreted by the 

Chairman. 

 

B.  Regular Meetings will be held on the first Wednesday of each month at 2:00 p.m. and 

the third Wednesday of each month at 7:00 pm in the Fluvanna Circuit Courtroom. 

Closed Meetings will be held as needed.  Meetings held on the first Wednesday will 

adjourn/recess no later than 6:00 p.m., and meetings held on the third Wednesday will 

adjourn/recess no later than 11:00 p.m.  The Board, at its pleasure, may continue its 

meeting beyond the normal adjournment/recess time, but shall not do so if two or more 

members object.  Meetings shall start at the appointed time, and if the Chairman is not 

present, the Vice-Chairman shall preside.  If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman 

is present, the County Administrator shall call the meeting to order and preside for the 

election of a temporary Chairman. 

 

 C.  Guidelines for Presentations 

 

1.  Notify the County Administrator in writing that you would like to make a 

presentation to the Board of Supervisors not later than 5:00pm on Monday, nine 

(9) days prior to the Board meeting in order to be placed on the agenda.  Please 

include within the context of the letter whether you will be providing 

materials/handouts to the Board or presenting a digital presentation and what the 

presentation is to be about. 

2.  If materials/handouts are to be presented to the Board, these materials must be 

provided to the County Administrator not later than 5:00pm on Tuesday, eight (8) 

days prior to the Board meeting.  These materials will be provided to the Board in 

the Board Agenda packet for review.  Staff will need the original along with 

sixteen (16) copies six (6) copies.  If handouts are presented at the time of the 

meeting, the Board of Supervisors may elect not to hear the presentation due to 

the fact they have not had time to review the material.  If no materials are to be 

handed out, then the letter requesting to make a presentation is sufficient to be 

placed on the agenda. 

3.  If you will be making a digital presentation, in addition to the items listed 

above, staff also requests that an electronic version of the presentation be 

provided to Mary Weaver at mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us  no later than Monday 

prior to the Board meeting for loading into the County’s laptop and to make sure 

everything is compatible with the County’s equipment. 

 

 

mailto:mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us


 

 

Page 3 

 

D.  The County Administrator shall list all items requested on the agenda.  If, in the 

opinion of the County Administrator, an item is not deemed appropriate for consideration  

by the Board, he shall inform the Chairman, and if the Chairman is in agreement, the 

Board shall first discuss whether to entertain the item. 

 

E.  The County Administrator shall allocate time to items on the agenda to suit the 

convenience of the Board. 

 

F.  The Board shall consider all items docketed on the agenda before taking any other 

items unless an undocketed item is brought by consent of the Board. 

 

G.  Time permitting, items not on the agenda shall be heard as the final items of the 

Board’s business.  If time does not permit, in the opinion of the Chairman or the Board, 

hearing items not on the agenda shall be carried over to the next regular or special 

meeting. 

 

H.  The Chairman’s vote on all issues before the Board shall be recorded with the 

prevailing side, unless the Chairman clearly votes otherwise. 

 

I. Once a notice for Public Hearing has been advertised, (regardless of the nature) the  

Public Hearing will be conducted, unless the Board decides to defer the matter to a future 

meeting. 

 

XI.  ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

The Order of Business shall be as follows unless the County Administrator in drawing up the 

Agenda shall find good cause to change it: 

 

   Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence 

    

   Reports 

 

   Public Comments #1(5 minutes each) 

 

   Consent Agenda 

 

   Accounts Payable 

 

   Public Hearings 

 

   Presentations (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

    

   Action Matters 

 

   Old Business Unfinished Business 
     

   New Business 



 

 

Page 4 

   Public Comments #2 ((55  minutes each) 

  

      Closed Meeting (as needed) 

 

   Adjourn/Recess 

 

Items with appointments shall be heard as nearly to the appointed time as possible in preference 

to other business, except that the Board may vote to call up any matter at any time. 

 

XII.  CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 

 

 A.  When the question is called and there is no dispute, the Chairman shall call for the  

vote. 

 

 B.  Any member abstaining on a vote shall so indicate following the call for the vote. 

 

C. When a motion is made and then cannot obtain a second, the motion will die for lack  

 of a second and does not require a vote. 

 

D.  Exhibits before the Board shall become the property of the Board and shall be filed 

with the County Administrator. 

 

E.  Citizens shall not speak at a meeting until they are recognized.  Citizens shall request 

recognition by addressing “Mr. Chairman” or “Madam Chairman” (as appropriate) and 

await acknowledgment.  At his discretion, the Chairman may permit a dialogue without 

individual recognition between members of the Board or between a member and a citizen 

if such dialogue is orderly and contributes to the expedition of the business. 

 

F.  Should it be desired by the Chairman, any member, or by the County Administrator, 

the member making a resolution shall reduce the same to writing and deliver it to the 

County Administrator’s Office. The County Administrator shall take down verbal 

resolutions as accurately as possible, but when loosely worded or unindicated 

“whereases” precede the motion, the County Administrator should use appropriate 

language to accomplish the intent of the Board. 

 

G.  Prior to initiating a public hearing, the Chairman shall recount the rules under which 

the hearing shall be operated, but he may amend the rules during the hearing by giving 

notice of the change to those gathered. 

 

H.  At the beginning of the public hearing, the Chairman shall call upon the County 

Administrator or the other staff member handling the matter at hand or shall himself 

recount a description of the issue placed before the hearing. 

 

 I.  Subject to revocation or extension by the majority of the Board assembled, the 

Chairman may in all matters establish a maximum time for consideration of any matter, 

and/or limit the amount of time available to each speaker, including Board members, on a 

matter and/or limit the number of times each speaker may address the Board on a matter.   



 

 

Page 5 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing statement, every Board member, by his election or 

appointment, is entitled to speak on every matter before the Board and the call for the  

question shall not be entertained until all members who wish to exercise this right shall 

have done so at least once. 

 

  J.  All members or citizens shall limit their comments before and to the Board.  The  

Chairman may prohibit questions from citizens until a speaker has finished his/her 

presentation. 

 

 K.  The Board of Supervisors has set forth the following rules for presentation time  

 limits: 

1. Individual presentations placed on the Board’s agenda shall be limited to a  

minimum duration. 

  2.  Individual presentations listed under the agenda item “Public Comments” shall  

  be limited to five (5) minutes in duration or less. 

  3.  Complete presentations on Board action items shall be limited to not more than  

  thirty (30) minutes. 

  4.  Either of the above limitations may be extended only by majority consent of  

  the Board of Supervisors. 

 

L.  At such times a Board member may find him or herself with a conflict of interest the 

Board member shall state the nature of the conflict of interest and shall, at their election, 

remove him or herself from the meeting. 

 

 M.  Issues that the Board plans on discussing or has required a presentation shall  

 normally have all materials in the agenda package for advance study. 

 

XIII.  ORDER 

 

 A.  It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The  

 Chairman shall speak to points of order in preference to all other members. 

 

B.  In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be 

challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after the Chairman declares that order has 

been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order, the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss 

the matter. 

 

C. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use slanderous or abusive language directed  

at any member of the Board or other person, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons 

to use such tactics.  The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of 

such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

D.  When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s 

removal from the building, or may order the person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, 

order the person removed from the County property and may, at his discretion, bring 

formal charges for disruption of a public meeting. 



 

 

 

Page 6 

XIV.  COMMITTEES 

 

Ad hoc committees will be appointed by the Chairman as needed.  Constitutional Officers may 

be appointed to committees. 

 

XV.  PARLIAMENTARIAN 

 

The County Attorney shall act as Parliamentarian to the Board. 

 

XVI.  RULES 

 

A.  The by-laws may be suspended at anytime by a majority vote of the Board of 

Supervisors. 

 

 B.  The by-laws may be altered by a majority vote of the Board of Supervisors. 

 

XVII.  OFFICIAL BOARD TRAVEL 

 

A.  A Board member may travel officially in-state at the Board member’s discretion.  In-

state travel shall include travel to Washington, D.C. 

 

B.  A Board member shall obtain advance approval of the Board prior to official travel 

out-of-state.  A report and accounting of funds shall be made for travel. 

 

XVIII.  RECORDING OF MEETINGS 

 

The Clerk of the Board (or another person acting in that capacity) shall record each regular 

meeting.  These recordings are the property of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors.  

Interested persons may listen to the recordings in the County Administrator’s office or may 

obtain copies of the recording by making appropriate arrangements with the County 

Administrator’s office.  Costs will be borne by the person making the request.  The original 

recordings shall not be removed from the County Office Building. 

 

XIX.  APPROVAL OF CERTAIN CHECKS, AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN WITH STAMP 

  

A.  The chairman, county administrator, treasurer and vice chairman are hereby 

authorized to sign and issue checks without prior approval of the Board for the following 

purposes:  end of the month salaries, end of the month contracted personal services, 

utility payments, and other payments deemed appropriate and necessary by the chairman, 

county administrator and treasurer; such actions to be reviewed and ratified at the next 

appropriate meeting of the Board. 

  

B. The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, and in his absence, the Vice- 

Chairman, are authorized to substitute his facsimile signature provided he signs a 

certified list of individual checks for which his facsimile signature is authorized; also the 

signature plates are in the sole possession of the Treasurer. 

  





2 

 

Supervisor Appointments to Boards/Commissions/Committees  Expiration of Term 
 
Affordable Housing Task Force      12/31/13 
       
          12/31/13 
 
Agricultural/Forestal Advisory Committee     12/31/13 
 
Audit Committee        12/31/13 

 
Community Policy Management Team (CPMT)    12/31/13 
 
Court Green Committee       12/31/13 
 
Economic Development Commission (EDC)     12/31/13 
 
Emergency Services Director      12/31/13 
 
Fluvanna Transportation Safety Commission     12/31/13 
 
Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Committee    12/31/13 
 
Landfill Advisory Committee       12/31/13 
 two (2) Board members 
          12/31/13 
 
Palmyra Wastewater Committee      12/31/13 
 two (2) Board members      
          12/31/13 
 
Parks & Recreation Board       12/31/13 
 
Piedmont Work Force Council      12/31/13 
 
Planning Commission       12/31/13 
 
Rivanna River Basin Commission      12/31/13 
 two (2) Board members 
          12/31/13 
 
Social Services Board         12/31/13 
 
Thomas Jefferson Area Community Criminal Justice Board                12/31/13 
 
Thomas Jefferson Partnership Economic Development    ________________ 12/31/13 
 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission    12/31/13 
 
Virginia Association of Counties Legislature Contact     12/31/13 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

 
Supervisor Appointments to Boards/Commissions/Committees  Expiration of Term 
 
Affordable Housing Task Force   Mozell H. Booker 12/31/11 
       Shaun V. Kenney 12/31/11 
 
Agricultural/Forestal Advisory Committee  Donald W. Weaver 12/31/11 
 
Audit Committee     Donald W. Weaver 12/31/11 
 
Community Policy Management Team  Mozell H. Booker 12/31/11 
 
Court Green Committee    John Y. Gooch  12/31/11 
 
Economic Development Commission  Joe Chesser  12/31/11 
 
Emergency Services Director   John Y. Gooch  12/31/11 
 
Fluvanna Transportation Safety Commission  Joe Chesser  12/30/11 
 
Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Committee  Mozell H. Booker 12/31/11 
 
Landfill Advisory Committee    Donald W. Weaver 12/31/11 
 
Palmyra Wastewater Committee   Chris Fairchild  12/31/11 
       John Y. Gooch  12/31/11 
 
Parks & Recreation Board    Mozell H. Booker 12/31/11 
 
Piedmont Work Force Council   Shaun V. Kenney 12/31/11 
 
Planning Commission    Joe Chesser  12/31/11 
 
Rivanna River Basin Commission   Joe Chesser  12/31/11 
       John Y. Gooch  12/31/11 
 
Social Services Board      Mozell H. Booker 12/31/11 
 
Thomas Jefferson Area Community Criminal Justice Board Shaun V. Kenney 12/31/11 
 
Thomas Jefferson Partnership for Economic Development Chris Fairchild  12/31/11 

 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission Joe Chesser  12/31/11 
 
Virginia Association of Counties Legislature Contact John Y. Gooch  12/31/11 
 
 
 

 

 





 

1 
 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

December 21st, 2011 
7:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  
    Mozell H. Booker 

Donald W. Weaver  
    Chris Fairchild 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Joe Chesser 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Fred Payne, County Attorney 
    Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator/Planning Director 

Steven Tugwell, Senior Planner 
    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

Jonathan McMahon, Director of Information Technology 
John Robins, Public Works Director 
Dwight Godwin, Director of Parks and Recreation 

    Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of December 21st, 2011, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit 
Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited; after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 
 
REPORTS 
Mr. Kenney presented Mr. Fairchild with a plaque for his year of service as the Board of 
Supervisor for the Rivanna District and presented Mr. Gooch with a plaque for his four years of 
dedicated service as the Board of Supervisor for the Palmyra District. 
Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 
 Mr. Garland Nuckols, Facilities Director, is home from the hospital and doing well. 
 Review of the Fluvanna Fire and Rescue by the Virginia Fire Safety Board is being 

initiated by Mr. John Robins, Public Works Director.  
 Advertising needs for the recruiting of rescue volunteers – Fire Rescue committee is 

going to propose a schedule for 2012. 
 Pursue an agreement with the TJPDC – on agenda for this evening. 
 Pursue discussions with the Department of Corrections with the possibility of partnering 

on utilities at Zion Crossroads – waiting for a call back, will schedule a meeting in 
January. 

 State Budget Information – still very general at this point. 
 Economic Interest Forms due by January 15th, 2012. 



 

2 
 

 Request Tab N – Request for IT Budget Supplement, be pulled from consent agenda and 
moved to action item along with moving Tab X – Heritage Farm Museum at Pleasant 
Grove, to be moved to the beginning of action matters. 

 
Board kept Tab N – Request for IT Budget Supplement, in the consent agenda and moved Tab X 
– Heritage Farm Museum at Pleasant Grove, to the beginning of action matters. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 
Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 
 Marvin Moss, Columbia District – Thanked Mr. Gooch and Mr. Fairchild for their 

service on the Board. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items were pulled from the consent agenda: 
 Budget Supplement and Transfer for the award Byran Rothamel 
 Budget Supplement for Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott Legal Services 

 
The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 
 Minutes of December 7th, 2011. 
 Request for additional IT support funds 

Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 4-0-1.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Booker, Kenney, and Fairchild.   ABSTAINED:  Weaver NAYS:  None.  
ABSENT:  Chesser 

 
Budget Supplement and Transfer for the award Byran Rothamel 
Mr. Kenney requested Mr. Payne review with the Board an explanation of this case.  Mr. Payne 
explained the judge determined the ordinance was improper as applied to Mr. Rothamel.  Mr. 
Payne does not recommend an appeal. 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved the Board of Supervisors approve the budget supplement of 
$35,263.56 from fund balance and transfer of $2,208.94 from Board of Supervisor 
contingency for the award per case no. 3:11CV00002 to Bryan Rothamel in the 
amount of $37,472.50. 
The following general ledger lines will be affected: 
10011000 403100 Board of Supervisors – Professional Services $37,472.50 
10000090 343100 Use of Fund Balance      35,263.56 
10086000 405870 Board of Supervisors – Contingency                        2,208.94 
Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Gooch, 
Booker, Fairchild, Weaver and Kenney. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 
Budget Supplement for Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott Legal Services 
Mr. Gooch wanted to point out that the Board of Contingency fund is now gone and this money 
will be coming out of the fund balance.  



 

3 
 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved the Board of Supervisors approve the budget supplement of 
$200,000 from fund balance for legal services of Eckert Seamans Cherin & 
Mellott and transfer back to Board of Supervisor’s contingency funds previously 
approved. 
The following general ledger lines will be increased: 
10011000 403100 Board of Supervisors – Professional Services $200,000.00 
10000090 343100 Use of Fund balance       200,000.00 
Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 4-1. AYES: Booker, 
Fairchild, Weaver and Kenney. NAYS:  Gooch. ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
SUP 11:03, National Communication Towers, LLC  
A request for a special use permit to allow for a 195 foot wireless communications tower with 
respect to 3.5 acres of Tax Map 47, Section A, Parcel 10. The property is zoned A-1 and is 
located on the north side of West River Road (U.S. Route 6), approximately 0.4 miles east of its 
intersection with Beals Lane (Route 645). The property is located in the Cunningham Election 
District and is within the Rural Residential Planning Area.  
Mr. Steven Tugwell, Senior Planner, addressed the Board regarding this item.   
Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, suggested that condition #5 be revised to read as follows:  
The applicant shall provide space on the TSF for the County’s Public safety antennas and feed 
lines at the highest designed elevation, and for the weight of the equipment (e.g., microwave 
dishes, antennae, cables, etc.) Space for ground level electronic equipment shall also be 
provided. 
Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 
 Elliott Harrigan, President National Communication Towers, LLC, applicant for this 

request – addressed the Board in support of this request and would be happy to answer 
any questions. 

 Bill Hughes, Cunningham District, Commander for VFW Post 8169 – addressed the 
Board in support of this request. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors approve SUP 11:03, a special 
use permit request to allow for a 195 foot monopole telecommunications tower 
pursuant to Fluvanna County Code Section 22-27-1 with respect to 3.5 acres of 
Tax Map 47, Section A, Parcel 10, subject to the conditions listed in the staff 
report as amended.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-
0.  AYES: Gooch, Booker, Fairchild, Weaver and Kenney. NAYS:  None. 
ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 



 

4 
 

SUP 11:04, Clifford H. Krammes  
A request for a special use permit to amend the conditions of SUP 00:003 with respect to 24.773 
acres of Tax Map 29, Section A, Parcel 113. This property is zoned A-1 and is located on the 
south side of Haden Martin Road (Route 640), approximately 1.5 miles east of its intersection 
with Sclaters Ford Road (Route 660). The property is located in the Fork Union Election District 
and is within the Rural Residential Planning Area.  Mr. Steven Tugwell, Senior Planner, 
addressed the Board regarding this item.   
Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 
Mr. Clifford H. Krammes, Fork Union District, applicant for this request – addressed the 
Board in support of this request, explained his plans for this expansion and would be happy to 
answer any questions. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 
After some discussion the Board made the following motion: 
 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved that the Board of Supervisors approve SUP 11:04, with 
respect to 24.773 acres of Tax Map 29, Section A, Parcel 113, with revisions to 
the conditions as described in the staff report.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion 
carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Gooch, Booker, Fairchild, Weaver and 
Kenney. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  Chesser. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
FY11 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report – Ms. Renee Hoover, Finance Director, reviewed 
with the Board the changes and balances in the FY11 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  
Mr. David Foley, Robinson, Farmer, Cox and Associates, reviewed with the Board their 
unqualified opinion along with items that were noted from the audit that was performed. 
 No instances of significant deficiencies or material weakness in the County’s internal 

control over financial reporting. 
  No significant deficiencies or material weakness in the County’s compliance with its 

major Federal programs. 
 Issued a management letter with recommendations in reference to: 

o  General Checking Account Reconciliation,  
o Information Technology Internal Controls 
o Grant Compliance 

 
Accounting of Health Insurance Fund – Mrs. Linda Lenherr, Treasurer, reviewed with the Board 
the process and current balance of the Self Insurance Health Fund.  There will be a separate 
account for the County and the Schools. 
 
Fluvanna Education Foundation Community Scholarship Program – Mr. Shaun Kenney, Vice-
Chairman, reviewed with the Board the intent and process that would be used to administer the 
scholarship funds.  Mr. Donnie Scott, president of the Fluvanna Education Foundation (FEF), 
spoke on behalf of the FEF and mentioned they would be willing to manage the funding of the 
scholarship funds and establish an eligibility program.  Applicants will be required to be a 
Fluvanna resident for the minimum of one year and volunteer back to the community for two 
years after receiving a scholarship or grant. 
 



 

5 
 

ACTION MATTERS 
Heritage Farm Museum at Pleasant Grove – Mr. Dwight Godwin, Director of Parks and 
Recreation addressed the Board with this request to develop a Heritage Farm Museum at 
Pleasant Grove with the vintage farm equipment that was donated by Mr. John May.  This will 
be in partnership with the Historical Society to educate visitors about the history of farming in 
Fluvanna from 1800’s.  Mr. Marvin Moss, president of the Historical Society, spoke in support 
of this request.   
After some discussion the Board made the following motion: 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors approve staff to move forward 
with the development of the Heritage Farm Museum at Pleasant Grove.  Mrs. 
Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Gooch, Booker, 
Fairchild, Weaver and Kenney. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 
Chairman Gooch thanked Mr. John May for his donation of vintage farm equipment to Fluvanna 
County. 
 
Proposal to Study Fiscal Impact of Extending a Water Line to Zion Crossroads by Planning 
District Commission Staff – Mr. Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator/Planning Director 
reviewed with the Board this request to execute a contract with Thomas Jefferson Planning 
District Commission (TJPDC) for consulting services to develop a report that will assess the 
financial impact of a water line extension to Zion Crossroads.  Mr. Steve Williams, Executive 
Director of the TJPDC, explained to the Board the proposed financial impact study.   
After some discussion the Board made the following motion: 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved to authorize the County Administrator to execute a contract, 
after County Attorney approval as to form, with the Thomas Jefferson Planning 
District Commission (TJPDC) to perform a financial impact study for a water line 
extension to Zion Crossroads in an amount not to exceed $4,000.  Further moved 
to approve the following associated fiscal actions: 
Transfer of county funding from Board of Supervisors Contingency to the 
Economic Development.   
Contingency Fund:     100 86000 405870  ($4,000) 
Economic Development Professional Services: 100 83000 403100   $4,000 
Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Gooch, 
Booker, Fairchild, Weaver and Kenney. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 
Fork Union Sanitary District Loan Repayment and Refunding Resolution – Mr. John Robins, 
Public Works Director, reviewed with the Board this request to authorize the issuance of a 
$40,000 refunding bond for the Fork Union Sanitary District. 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved to adopt the attached resolution authorizing the issuance, sale, 
award, and purchase of $40,000 refunding bond of the Fork Union Sanitary 
District and providing for the form, detail and payment thereof.  The interest rate 
will continue at no interest. Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a 



 

6 
 

vote of 4-1. AYES: Gooch, Booker, Fairchild, and Kenney. NAYS:  Weaver. 
ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 
EST 11:02 – Palmyra Associates – Mr. Steven Tugwell, Senior Planner, reviewed with the Board 
this request to establish the creation of a Conservation Easement of 25.93 acres of a portion of 
Tax Map 30(A)14, a total of 44.21 acres.  Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, expressed that his 
concerns of being able to expand the sewer plant if necessary have been addressed.   
After some discussion the Board made the following motion: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve EST 11:02, a request to establish the creation of a 
Conservation Easement, 11:02 for 25.93 acres of Tax Map 30(A)84 subject to the 
property restrictions listed in the staff report, the Deed of Easement being subject 
to approval as to form by the County Attorney.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The 
motion carried with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Gooch, Booker, Fairchild, Weaver and 
Kenney. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  Chesser. 
 

Route 15/53 Roundabout Revenue Share Agreement – Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Interim County 
Administrator/Planning Director, addressed the Board regarding this request for a roundabout at 
the intersection of Route 15 and Route 53.    Mr. Coffey and Mr. Payne reviewed the three 
options with the Board and recommended option #1 – decline VDOT’s award for construction 
funds for the roundabout project and pursue the design of the intersection improvement with the 
funds already allocated to the project and with the agreement with VDOT currently in place.  Mr. 
Justin Shimp spoke on behalf of the applicant.   
After some discussion the Board made the following motion: 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors enter into an agreement with 
Palmyra Associates as set forth in their letter dated December 13, 2011, and move 
forward with the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Revenue Sharing 
project for the design and construction of a roundabout at the route 15 and route 53 
intersection.  Further moved that the Board of Supervisors approve a budget 
supplement from the Fund balance of $285,000. 
The following general ledger lines will be affected: 
10000090 343100 Use of Fund Balance   $285,000 
3020008 319911 RNDBT                         $285,000 
Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 4-1. AYES: Gooch, 
Booker, Fairchild and Kenney. NAYS:  Weaver. ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Mr. Fairchild suggested using the Micro Finance money instead of pulling it from the General 
Fund. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Mrs. Booker requested staff to look into who is responsible for repairing the road in front of the 
Parks and Recreation Building.  It is believed this is a state road. 
 



 

7 
 

Hiring process of County Administrator – Mr. Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator, 
requested to bring a job description and a detailed process to the Board at the second meeting in 
January for review.   
 
EXTEND MEETING  

MOTION:  
Mr. Kenney moved to extend the Board of Supervisors meeting to 12:00am. Mrs. 
Booker seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Gooch, Kenney, 
Booker, Fairchild and Weaver. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Chesser 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 
Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 
 Adrian Miller, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in regards to the Heritage Farm 

Museum and the proposed Fiscal Impact Study of extending a Water Line to Zion 
Crossroads. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – addressed the Board in regards to the proposed 
Fiscal Impact Study of extending a Water Line to Zion Crossroads.  Thanked Mr. Gooch 
and Mr. Fairchild for their service. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 
comments. 
 
Mr. Chris Fairchild thanked the Board for appointing him and he has enjoyed his time on the 
Board. 
 
CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 
At 11:08 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
enter into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the 
Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing Legal Matters 
– Actual and Potential Litigation.  Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried with 
a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Weaver.   NAYS:  
None.  ABSENT:  Chesser. 

 
MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 

At 12:09 a.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors reconvene again in open session. Mrs. 
Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Chesser 
 

MOTION: 
At 12:10 a.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County 
Board of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, December 
21st,  2011, on motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Kenney and carried by the 
following vote: AYES:  Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver, and Fairchild. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT: Chesser. 
 



 

8 
 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 
was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 
 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to ratify the extension of the meeting to 12:15a.m. Mr. 
Kenney seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0. AYES:  Weaver, 
Gooch, Kenney, Booker and Fairchild. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Chesser 

 
ADJOURN 

MOTION: 
At 12:11a.m., Mr. Kenney moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, 
December 21st, 2011. Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 
5-0. AYES:  Weaver, Gooch, Kenney, Booker and Fairchild. NAYS: None. 
ABSENT: Chesser 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
__________________               
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 
 



 

9 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND AWARD OF $40,000.00 
REFUNDING BOND OF THE FORK UNION SANITARY DISTRICT AND PROVIDING FOR 
THE FORM, DETAILS AND PAYMENT THEREOF 
 

WHEREAS,  the Board of Supervisors (the "Board") of Fluvanna County, Virginia (the 
"County"), as the governing body of the Fork Union Sanitary District (the "District"), on April 7, 2010, 
determined that the District should obtain short-term financing to meet casual deficits in the revenue of 
the District in accordance with Virginia Code Sections 21.1-118.4; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County agreed to provide such short-term financing in the principal amount of 
$40,000.00; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Virginia Code Section 21-118.4, the District 
issued and sold to the County on April 7, 2010, a Revenue Anticipation Note, numbered R-1, in the 
principal amount of $40,000.00 (“Note R-1"); and 
 

WHEREAS, Note R-1 was repaid by the District with the proceeds of a short-term Refunding 
Bond, numbered R-2, in the principal amount of $40,000.00, in accordance with the provisions of 
Virginia Code Section 15.2-2649 (“Note R-2”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interests of the District to repay 

Note R-2 with proceeds of a short-term Refunding Bond in the principal amount of $40,000.00, in 
accordance with the provisions of Virginia Code Section 15.2-2649; and  

 
WHEREAS, the amount of such short-term Refunding Bond does not exceed one-half of the 

amount reasonably anticipated to be produced by the revenues of the District, including taxes levied 
pursuant to Virginia Code Section 21-119, for the 2012 calendar year, exclusive of any anticipated tax 
revenues of the District which have not actually been levied and assessed against property within the 
District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County is willing to provide such short-term refunding of Note R-2, in the 

principal amount of $40,000.00;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA: 
 

1. Sale of the Note.  The Board, acting as the governing body of the District, hereby 
authorizes the District to borrow and repay the principal amount of $40,000.00 in order to refund the Note 
R-2.  Such borrowing shall be evidenced by a certain Refunding Bond to be issued to the County in 
accordance with the terms of this Resolution (the “Refunding Bond”).  The County approves the 
refunding of Note R-2 as set forth in this Resolution. 
 

2. Note Details; Payment Provisions.  The Refunding Bond shall be issued as (i) a single 
fully registered note which shall be designated "Refunding Bond",  shall be in typewritten form, shall be 
in the principal amount of $40,000.00, shall be numbered R-3, shall be dated January 1, 2012, shall 
mature on December 15, 2012, and shall bear no interest.  The Refunding Bond shall be issued pursuant 
to the Constitution of Virginia, the statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia and this resolution adopted 
by the County's Board of Supervisors. 
 



 

10 
 

3. Prepayment of Note.  The Refunding Bond shall be subject to prepayment prior to 
maturity at the option of the District in whole or in part at any time without premium, upon payment of 
the outstanding principal amount to be prepaid. 
 

4. Execution of Note.  The Refunding Bond shall be signed on behalf of the District by the 
manual signature of the Chairman of the Board, countersigned by the manual signature of the Clerk of the 
Board and the Board's seal shall be affixed thereto. 
 

5. Note Form.  The Refunding Bond shall be in substantially the form which is attached 
hereto, with such completions, omissions, insertions and changes not inconsistent with this Resolution as 
may be approved by the officers signing the Refunding Bond, whose approval shall be evidenced 
conclusively by the execution and delivery of the Refunding Bond. 

 
6. Registration and Transfer of Note.  The Refunding Bond shall be issued in registered 

form without coupons, payable to the registered holder or registered assigns.  The County Treasurer is 
hereby appointed paying agent and registrar for the Refunding Bond (the "Registrar").  The County may 
appoint a qualified bank or trust company as successor Registrar.  The Registrar shall maintain 
registration books for the registration and registration of transfer of the Refunding Bond.  The Refunding 
Bond may be transferred only upon an assignment executed by the registered holder in such form as shall 
be satisfactory to the Registrar, such transfer to be made on the registration books and endorsed on the 
Refunding Bond by the Registrar.  The person or persons in whose name or names the Refunding Bond 
shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and 
payment of the principal of and interest on the Refunding Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of 
the registered owner thereof or his legal representative. 
 

7. Preparation and Delivery of Note.  The Chairman and the Clerk of the Board are 
authorized and directed to take all proper steps to have the Refunding Bond prepared and executed, to 
comply with provisions of this Resolution and to deliver the Refunding Bond to the County Treasurer 
who shall deliver the Refunding Bond to the County in exchange for the retirement of Note R-2. 
 

8. Payment of Prior Note.  The County Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to 
apply the proceeds of the Refunding Bond to the repayment to the County of Note R-2 immediately 
following the delivery of the Refunding Bond to the County. 
 

9.       Other Actions.  All other actions of officers of the County, the District and the Board in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the issuance and sale of 
the Refunding Bond are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.  The officers of the County and the 
District are authorized and directed to execute and deliver all certificates and instruments and to take all 
action necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Refunding Bond. 
 

10. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 

11. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11 
 

 
REFUNDING BOND, R-3 
 
$ 40,000.00  Palmyra, Virginia 

January 1, 2012 
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Fork Union Sanitary District (hereinafter "District") promises to 
pay to the County of Fluvanna, or order, at Palmyra, Virginia, the principal sum of FORTY THOUSAND 
AND 00/100 ($40,000.00) DOLLARS, without interest.  The entire outstanding, unpaid balance of 
principal shall be paid on December 15, 2012, if not sooner paid. The District may prepay this note in 
whole or in part at any time and from time to time, without premium or penalty.   
 

If suit is brought to collect this note, the note holder shall be entitled to collect all reasonable 
costs and expenses of suit, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees.  Presentment, notice or 
dishonor and protest are hereby waived. 
 

This note has been authorized by a resolution adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna 
County, on behalf of the District, on December 21, 2011, and is a refunding bond of the District made in 
accordance with Virginia Code Section 15.2-2649. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia, as the 
governing body of the District, has caused this note to be signed by the Chairman of the Board of 
Supervisors, countersigned by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, the County's seal affixed hereto and 
this note to be dated as of January 1, 2012. 
 
 
COUNTERSIGNED:     FORK UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 
_______________________________ (SEAL)         BY :_________________________( SEAL) 
Clerk, Board of Supervisors,           Chairman, Board of Supervisors, 
Fluvanna County, Virginia           Fluvanna County, Virginia 

 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Fluvanna County Attorney 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 December 21st, 2011 

Page 12 
 

12 
 

 CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION 
 
 
Date of   Name of 
Registration               : Registered Owner                                        : Signature of Registrar 
 
                                  :                                                                   :                                      
 
                                  :                                                                   :                                      
 
                                  :                                                                   :                                      
 
 
 
     

 




















































































	Agenda 1-4-12
	Election of Officers
	Adoption of BOS meeting Calendar
	Resolution/Organizational Meeting 2012
	Adoption of By-Laws and Rules of Practice & Procedures
	Appointment of BOS members to Boards, Commissions and Committees.
	Adoption of minutes 12-21-11
	FY12 Budget Supplement for Library Telecommunication Reimbursement
	January Accounts Payable

